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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of CPD Pharma Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of CPD Pharma Private Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit and
Loss (Including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of
Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the “financial
statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, and loss, other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section
of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Cade of Ethics issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) together with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. :

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the Director’s report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other informatioh is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate intemal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concem and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of
Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

We give in “Annexure A” a detailed description of Auditor’s responsibilities for Audit of the
Financial Statements.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give
in “Annexure B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order,
to the extent applicable.
2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
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mode on Sundays, in a server physically located in India and except for the matters stated
in paragraph 2(h)(vi) below on reporting under rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors are disqualified as on
March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) The reservation relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected
therewith are as stated in paragraph 2(b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and
paragraph 2(h)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g).

(g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure C”.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.
iv.

(1) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(2) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (Funding Parties), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, as on the date of this audit report, that the Company shall, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manne
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(3) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, and according to the information and explanations
provided to us by the Management in this regard nothing has come to our notice that has
caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e)
as provided under (1) and (2) above, contain any material mis-statement.

v.  The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

vi. The reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is
applicable from April 1, 2023.

Based on our examination, the Company has used a software application “Entero ERP”
for revenue, billing and receivables, purchases and payables and inventory management
during the year-ended March 31, 2025, which has a feature of recording the audit trail
(edit log) facility. The same has been enabled at application as well as database level.

Further, the audit trail feature operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions
recorded in the software application. Also, during the course of our examination, we did
not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with. (Refer note
45 to the financial statements)

3. In our opinion, according to information, explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by
the Company to its directors during the year, is within the limits prescribed under Section
197 read with Schedule V of the Act and the rules thereunder.

For Srinivasan Sundaram & Co.
Chartered Accountants

CA S. Srinivasan
Proprietor
M. No.: 217206

Place : Chennai
Date : May 26, 2025
UDIN : 25217206BMMBVE3438
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF CPD PHARMA PRIVATE LIMITED

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a mateérial misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

For Srinivasan Sundaram &
Chartered Accountan
FRN : 0113995

CA S. Srinivasan
Proprietor

M. No.: 217206
Place : Chennai
Date : May 26, 2025

UDIN : 25217206BMMBVE3438
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ANNEXURE B TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF CPD PHARMA PRIVATE LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

[Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the
Independent Auditors’ Report]

i.
(a)
A. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative

details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment, and relevant details of right-of-use
assets.

B. The Company has no intangible assets. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph
3(i)(a)(B) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has a planned programme of physically verifying Property, Plant and Equipment
over a period of three years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the
Company and the nature of its assets. In accordance therewith the Company has physically
verified a few blocks of assets in the current year. No material discrepancies were noticed on
such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no immovable properties.
Accordingly, the requirements under paragraph 3(i)(c) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not revalued its
property, plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) during the year. Accordingly, the
requirements under paragraph 3(i)(d) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, no proceeding has been initiated or
pending against the Company for holding benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988, as amended and rules made thereunder. Accordingly, the provisions
stated in paragraph 3(i) (e) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

ii.

(a) The Company has a system of physical verification of inventory whereby all items of inventory
are physically verified over a period of time at regular intervals during the year. Discrepancies,
if any between physical inventory and book records are adjusted in the books as and when the
verifications and corresponding reconciliations are carried out. In our opinion, the frequency of
verification, coverage and procedure of such verification is reasonable and appropriate. No
discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventories were noticed on such
physical verification of inventories.

(b) According to the information and explanations provided to us, the Company has not been
sanctioned working capital limits. Accordingly, the requirements under paragraph 3(ii)(b) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

iii. According to the information and explanations provided to us, the Company has not madg ?
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other parties. Hence, the requirements under paragraph 3(iii) of the order are not applicable to
the company.

iv. According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no loans, investments,
guarantees, and security in respect of which provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the Companies
Act, 2013, are applicable and accordingly, the provisions stated under clause 3(iv) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

v. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has neither accepted any
deposits from the public nor any amounts which are deemed to be deposits, within the meaning of
Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed there under.
Accordingly, the provisions stated under clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company. Also, there are no amounts outstanding as on March 31, 2025, which are in the nature
of deposits.

vi. The provisions of sub-Section (1) of Section 148 of the Act are not applicable to the Company as
the Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance of cost records for any of the
products of the Company. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3(vi) of the Order are
not applicable to the Company.

vii.
(@) The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise, Sales tax and
Value added tax during the year since effective July 1, 2017, these statutory dues have been
subsumed into GST.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, in our opinion, undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services tax,
Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs, Cess, and other
statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities during
the year, though there have been slight delays in a few cases.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service
Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or other
statutory dues were in arrears as at March 31, 2025 for a period of more than six months from
the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, there are no dues of Goods and Services Tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State
Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs, Cess, and other statutory dues which have not been
deposited on account of any dispute.

viii. According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no transactions which are not
accounted in the books of account which have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the
year in Tax Assessments of the Company. Also, there are no previously unrecorded income which
has been now recorded in the books of account. Hence, the provision stated in paragraph 3(viii) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

ix.
(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and the records of
the Company examined by us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans g
borrowings or in payment of interest thereon to the lender. \
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(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit
procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or
financial institution or government or any government authority.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information explanation provided to us, no money was raised
by way of term loans during the year. Accordingly, the provision stated in paragraph 3(ix)(c) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us,
and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that no
funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate, or joint venture. Hence reporting under
the Clause 3(ix)(e) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

(f) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate, or joint venture. Hence, reporting under
the Clause 3(ix)(f) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

X.

(@) In our opinion and according to the information explanation given to us, the Company did not
raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments)
during the year. Hence, the provisions stated in paragraph 3(x)(a) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully, partly, or optionally convertible debentures during the year.
Hence, the provisions stated in paragraph 3(x)(b) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

xi.

(a) Based on our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance
with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and
explanations given to us, we report that no material fraud by the Company nor on the Company
has been noticed or reported during the year in the course of our audit.

(b) Based on our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance
with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and
explanations given to us, a report under Section 143(12) of the Act, in Form ADT-4, as prescribed
under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 was not required to be filed with
the Central Government. Accordingly, the provisions stated under clause 3(xi)(b) of the Order is

* not applicable to the Company.

(c) As represented to us by the Management, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by
the Company during the year.

xii.  The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3(xii)(a)
to (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xiii. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Secyidy
188 of the Act, where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the
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financial statements as required by applicable accounting standards. Further, the Company is not
required to constitute an Audit Committee under Section 177 of the Act.

xiv.  In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company does not require an internal audit
system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

xv.  According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion, during the year the
Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with
its directors and accordingly, the reporting on compliance with the provisions of Section 192
of the Companies Act, 2013 in clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xvi.

(@) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45 IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act,

1934 (2 of 1934) and accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3(xvi)(a) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company is not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without
any valid Certificate of Registration from Reserve Bank of India. Hence, the reporting under
paragraph clause 3 (xvi)(b) of the Order are not applicable to the Company

(c) The Company is not a Core investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
Reserve Bank of India. Hence, the reporting under paragraph 3(xvi)(c) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

(d) According to the information and explanations provided to us, the Group (as defined in the Core
Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) does not have any Core Investment
Company (as part of its group. Accordingly, the provisions stated under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the
order are not applicable to the Company.

xvii.  According to the information explanation provided to us, the Company has incurred cash losses in
the current financial year and in the immediately preceding financial year. The details of the same
are as follows:

(Amount in millions)
Particulars 31 March 2025 31% March 2024 7

Cash Losses 3.27 5.71 '

xviii. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Hence, the provisions stated
in paragraph 3(xviii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xix. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios
(as disclosed in note 43 to the financial statements), ageing and expected dates of realization of
financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which
causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when
they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this
is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting i
based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor afy
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet d42;
will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due. o
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xix. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our verification, the
provisions of Section 135 of the Act are not applicable to the Company. Hence, reporting under
paragraph (xx)(a) to (b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xx. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any

Subsidiary, Associate or Joint Venture. Accordingly, reporting under Clause 3(xxi) of the Order is
not applicable.

For Srinivasan Sundaram & Co
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 011399S

SQW

CA S Srinivasan
Proprietor
M. No.: 217206

Place : Chennai
Date : May 26, 2025
UDIN : 25217206BMMBVE3438
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ANNEXURE C TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF CPD PHARMA PRIVATE LIMITED

[Referred to in paragraph 2(g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the
Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the Members of CPD Pharma Private Limited on the
Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of CPD
Pharma Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in alt material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control
with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Intemat Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl)
(the “Guidance Note”).

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note.
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed
under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate intemmal financial
controls with reference to financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financiat controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing
risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and opgfs "
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend/s; 7
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auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With reference to Financial Statements

A Company’s internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A Company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of internal Financial Controls With reference to financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For Srinivasan Sundaram & Co.
Chartered Accountants

CA S. Srinivasan
Proprietor
M. No.: 217206

Place : Chennai
Date : May 26, 2025
UDIN : 25217206BMMBVE3438



CPD Pharma Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31 Morch 2025
(Amount In Mllllons, unless otherwlse stated)}

Partlculars

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment & Intanglble Assets
Property, plant and equlpment
Right of use asset
Flnanclal assets
Other financial assets
Deferred tax assets (net)
Non-Current tax assets (net)
Total non-current assets

Current assets
Inventorles
Flnanclal assets
Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Other financlal assets
Other current assets
Total current assets
Total assets

EQILHTY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

Equity share capltal
Other equity

Total equity

Liabilitles
Non-current liabilitles
Financlal Habllitles
BorrowIngs
Leasd Liabllities
Provislons
Total non-current llabllitles

Current liabllities

Financlal llabilitles
BorrowlIngs
Lease Llabliitlas
Trade payables
1} total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small anterprises
i) total outstanding dues of creditors other than mlcro and small enterprises
Other financlal liabllitles

Other current Ifabllitles

Provislons

Current tax liabllitles (net)

Total current llabllitles

Total labllities

Total equity and liabilities

See accompanylng notes to the financial statements
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financlal statements.

As per our report of even date
For Srinivasan Sundaram & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reglstration No, 01

# 8, New# 19
ByorStreel,

Chennai-21

S.Srinivasan

Proprietor
Membership No:217206
Place : Chennal

Date: 26-05-2025

Note No As at As at
: 31March 2025 31 March 2024
5(A) 195 237
5{8) 0.87 251
6 011 0.87
7 0.62 4.42
8 - .
3.55 10.17
L] 0.04 0.09
10 6.38 11.05
11 1.40 1.37
12 2.98 -
13 4.46 5,65
15.26 18,16
18.81 28.33
14 0.10 0.10
15 [21.63) (12.66)
[71.53) (12758)
25.00 -
17 0.71 174
18 0.17 0.17
25.88 1.91
16 3.23 28.23
17 0.16 1.24
19
0.00 -
0.64 0.54
20 10.16 7.32
21 0.05 1.44
18 0.11 0.11
a 0.12 0.10
14.47 38.98
A40.35 a0.89
18.81 28.33
1-47
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
CPD Pharma Private Limited
CIN:US1909TN2019PTC130073
;&&
/ .
Kart KRVS Varaprasad
Direc Director
DIN: 10624300 DIN:08403009
Place : Chennal Place : Chennal

Date: 26-05-2025

Date: 26-05-2025



CPD Pharma Private Limited
Statemant of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2025
{Amount in Milllons, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note No.
Income

Revenue from operations 22
Other Income 23
Total Income

Expenses

Purchase of Stock-In-trade 24
Changes In Inventorles of Stock-In-trade 25
Employee benefits expense 26
Finance costs 27
Depreclation and amortlzatlon expense 28
Other expenses 29
Total expenses

Loss before tax

Tax expense

Current tax 30
Deferred tax 6.1
Total Income tax expense

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive Income

Items that wlil not be reclassified to profit or loss

Remeasurement galn on defined beneflt plan

Income tax effect on remeasurement galn on defined benefit plan

Total

Total comprehensive income for the year

Earnings per equity share (Nominal value of share: INR 10 (31 March 2024 : INR 20})}

Baslc {INR) 31
DHuted {INR}
See accompanying notes to the flnanclal statements 1-47

The accompanyling notes are an Integral part of the flnanclal statements.

As per our report of even date

For Srinlvasan Sundaram & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Flrm Reglstration No. 011349%

1 Shieet,
hennai-21,

S.Srinlvasan

Proprietor
Membershlp No:217206
Place : Chennal

Date: 26-05-2025

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(0.45) 82.42
0.54 0.06
0.09 82.48
{0.60) 64.69
0.05 14.42
0.01 2.39
2.77 3.95
0.88 181
2,13 2.74
5.24 90.00
(5.15) (7.52)
3.81 (2.62)
3.81 (2.62)
(8.96) {4.90)
0.04
{0.01)
- 0.03
(8.96) (4.88)
{896.27) {490.04)

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
CPD Pharma Private Limited
CIN:U51909TN2019PTC130073

KRVS Varaprasad
Director Director
DIN: 10629300 DIN:08403009

Place : Chennal
Date: 26-05-2025

Place : Chennal
Date: 26-05-2025



CPD Pharma Private Limited
Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2025
{Amount in Millions, uniess otherwise stated}

For the year ended

For the year ended

Partlculars
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Cash flow from operating actlivities
{Loss) before tax {5.15) {7.52)
Adjustments for:
Depreclation and amortization expenses 0.88 181
Finance cost 2,77 395
Expected credlt loss allowance 1.48 131
Interest on unwinding of security depaosits {0.02) {0.06)
Gain on termination of lease 10,50) -
0.54) (0.52)
Changes In working caplital
Decrease/{Increase) in inventories 0.05 14.42
{Inerease) in trade receivables 3.18 {4.92)
{Increase)/Decrease in other current assets 1.19 {3.11)
Increase/(Decrease) in other current liabilities (1.39) 017
Increase in other financial liabilities 2.85 331
{Decrease)/Increase in trade payables 0.10 {4.47)
Decrease provision for retirement benefits & Leave obligation - {0.04)
Cash generated In operatlons 324 4.81
Income tax paid {includes advance tax) 0.00 0.08
Net cash flows generated In operating activitles (A} 3.24 4,89
Cash flow from Investing activitles
Purchase of property, plant and equipment {0.00} 0.02
Interest received - 0.06
Net cash flows {used) In Investing activities (B) {0.00) 0.08
Cash flow from FInancing activitles
Payment of lease llabilities {0.44) (1.26)
Finance casts paid (2.77) {3.83)
Net cash flows {used) In flnancing actlvitles (C) {3.20) (5.09)
Net Increase in cash and cash equivalents {A+B+C) 0.04 119
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 1.37 018
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period. 1.41 1.37
Cash and cash equivalents comprise (Refer note 11)
Balances with banks
In current accounts 1.40 137
Cash on hand 0.00
Total cash and bank balances at the end of the year 1.40 137
0.00 0.00
Reconclilation of the movements of llabllities to cash flows arlsing from flnancing actlvities
Partlculars Amount Amount
Opening balance
Cash credit facllity 0.00 -
Loan from Related Parties 28.23 28.23
Interest accrued and due on borrowings 7.32 4.00
Total 35.54 32.23
Movement
Cash flows-Cash Credit facllity 0.00 0.00
Loan from Related Partles . (28.23})
Interest paid {0.36) {0.64)
Interest expenses 2.77 3.95
Closing Balance
Cash credit facllity 0.00 0.00
Laan from Related Parties 28.23 28.23
Interest accrued and due on borrowlngs 9.73 7.32
Total 37.96 35.54

1. The above Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the ‘Indirect Method' as set out in the Indian Accounting Standard (ind AS) 7, Statement of Cash Flows as

specified in the Companles {Indlan Accounting Standards), Rules, 2015 {as amended).

2. Cash and cash equlvalent comprises cash on hand, Current Accounts and deposits with banks with an original maturlty of three months or less from the date of

deposits.




CPD Pharma Private Limited
Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2025
{Amaunt In Milllons, unless otherwlse stated)

See ying notes to the fi Tal

The accompanylng notes are an Integral part of the financlal statements.

As per our report of even date
For Srinivasen Sundaram & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Flrm Reglstration No. 011359
\

$.Srinlvasan
Proprletor
Membershlp No:217206
Place : Chennal

Date: 26-05-2025

1-47

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

CPD.Pharma Private Limited
CIN:US1904TN2019PTCI30073

S L]
N . &
Ka KRVS Varaprafa
Dire Director
DIN: 10629300 DIN:08403009
Place : Chennal Place : Chennal

Date: 26-05-2025 Date: 26-05-2025



CPD Pharma Private Limited
Statement of changes In equity for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

(A) Equity share capital (Refer note 14)

Particulars Amount

Balance as at 1 Aprit 2023 0.10
Add: issued during the year -
Balance as at 31 March 2024 0.10
Balance as at 1 April 2024 0.10
Add: Issued during the year -
Balance as at 31 March 2025 0.10

{B) Other equlty (Refer note 15)

Reserve and surplus

Particulars

Retalned earnings
Balance as at 1 April 2023 (7.79)
Changes during the period
Loss for the year {(4.90)
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans (net of tax) 0.03
Total comprehensive Income for the year (4.87)
Balance as at 31 March 2024 (12.66)
Balance as at 1 April 2024 (12.66)
Changes during the period
Loss for the year {8.96)
Other comprehensive income for the year -
Total comprehensive income for the year (8.96)
Balance as at 31 March 2025 (21.63)

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date
For Srinlvasan Sundaram & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. (111399

1-47

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
CPD Pharma Private Limited
CIN:U51909TN2019PTC130073

\ 8
S.Srinlvasan ik KRVS Varaprasad
Proprietor Director Director
Membership No:217206 DIN: 10629300 DIN:08403009
Place : Chennai Place : Chennal Place : Chennai

Date: 26-05-2025

Date: 26-05-2025 Date: 26-05-2025
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CPD

Pharma Private Limited

Notes forming part of the Financlal Statements for the year ended on 31 March 2025
{Amount in Milllons, unless otherwise stated)

71

particulars As at 31 March  As at 31 March
2025 2024
Other flnanclal assets
(Unsecured ,considered good)
Securlty deposlts (at amortised cost) 0.11 0.87
Total 0.11 0.87
Asat31March  Asat 31 March
2025 2024
Deferred tax assets (net)
Deferred tax asset an account of:
Expenses provided but allowable In Income Tax on payment
basis 0.00 0.01
On Ind AS 116 Adjustment 0.00 0.14
Gratuity & Leave Encashment 0.07 0.07
Expected CredIt Loss Provision 0.50 0.35
Unabsorbed depreclation 0.20
Unabsorbed loss 3.04
Falr Value of deposits 001
Deferred tax llabllity on account of:
TimIng difference between tax depreclation and depreciation
charged in the books 0.04 0.61
Net deferred tax assets 0.62 4.42
Note (a): Summary of daferred tax assets/(llabllities)
partieulars As at {Charged)/ (Charged)/ As at 31 March
1April 2024  Credited to P&L Credited to OCI 2025
TIming difference between tax depreciation and depreciation
charged in the books 0.61 {0.57) 0.04
Expenses provided but allowable in Income Tax on payment
basis 0.00 0.00
On Ind AS 116 AdJustment 0.00 0.00
Gratuity & Leave Encashment 0.07 007
Expected Credlt Loss Provision 0.50 0.50
Unabsorbed depreciation
Unabsorbed loss - . -
Net deferred tax assets/(llability) 1.18 {0.55) - 0.62
The Company has created deferred tax asset on unabsorbed depreciation and other items to the extent of deferred tax llablllty.
Particulars As at {Charged)/ (Charged)/ As at 31 March
1 April 2023 Credited to P&L  Credited to OCI 2024
Timing difference between tax depreciation and depreclation
charged in the books (0.02) 0.63 0.61
Expenses provided but allowable In Income Tax on payment
basis 0.01 (0.01} 0.00
On Ind AS 116 Adjustment 0.13 (0.13) 0.00
Gratulty & Leave Encashment 0.06 0.03 {0.01) 0.07
Expected Credlt Loss Provision 0,02 0.48 0.50
Unabsorbed depreclation 0.11 (0.11) -
Unabsorbed loss 1.51 {1.51) -
Net deferred tax assets/(llability) 1.82 (0.62) (0.01) 1.18
The Company has created deferred tax asset on unabsorbed depreclatlon and other Items to the extent of deferred tax liability.
Non-Current tax assets (net)
Provision for Income tax (0.12) (0.28)
Advance Income tax {Net of provision} - 0.18
Total (0.12) {0.10)
Inventories
At lower of cost and net reallzable value
Stock In trade (Refer note no. 25) 0.04 0.09
Total 0.04 0.09

/ V ,\i"\i -' \
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CPD Pharma Private Umited

Notes forming part of the Financlal Statements for the year ended on 31 March 2025

{Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

10 Trade receivable

11

12

13

Unsecured
-Considered good 6.38 11.05
-Considered doubtful 1.92 1.39
8.30 12.43
Less:- Expected loss allowances (1.92) (1.39)
Total 6.38 11,05
Trade recelvables agelng schedule
As at 31 March 2025
Particulars/ Perlod Les.s Th?“ Ef| & Months 1-2 yearss 2-3 yearss oS hens Total
to 1years yearss
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivable - Considered Good 0.99 0.57 3.62 1.20 6.38
{ll) Undisputed Trade Recelvable -Which have significant
increase in credit risk - 192
{ili) Undisputed Trade Receivable - Credit impalred - -
{iv) Undlisputed Trade Receivable - Consldered Doubtful -
{v] DIsputed Trade Recelvable - Consldered Good =
{vl) DIsputed Trade Receivabie - Considered Doubtful - .
Less: Allowance for d credit loss - - - (1.92}
Total 0.99 0.57 3.61 1.20 & 6.38
There are no unbilled and not due receivablos
As at 31 March 2024
|Particulars/ Perlod Less Thin 6] | & Months 1-2 yearss 2-3 yearss More than 3 Total
M to 1 years years
{}) Undisputed Trade Receivable - Considered Good 7.73 1.56 1.76 - 11.05
Tﬁ") Undisputed Trade Receivable -Which have significant
Increase In credit risk 139
{ill} Undisputed Trade Receivable - CredIt impalred
{lv) Undisputed Trade Receivable - Considered Doubtful -
{v) DIsputed Trade Receivable - Considered Good - - -
(vi) Disputed Trade Recelvable - Consldered Doubtful - = = d
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss - - (1.39)
Total 5.42 1.56 1.84 - - 11.05
There are no unbilled and not due receivables
Particulars Asat3lMarch  Asat31March
2025 2024
Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks:

In current accounts 1.40 137
Cash on hand - 0.00
Total 1.40 1.37
Other financlal assets
Other recelvable 298
Total 2,98 -
Other current assets
Advance to suppliers 0.01 1.40
Prepald expenses 0.01 0.03
Balance with Government authoritles 1.03 0.95
Staff advance 0.16 0.16
Claims receivable 3.25 3.10
Total 4.46 5.64

o s -




CPD Pharma Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Financlal Statements for the year ended on 31 March 2025
{Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

14 Equlty Share capital

1

«n

Eat Asat

Particulars
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

a. Authorised Share Capital
10,000 (31 March 2024:10,000) Equity Shares of Rs 10 each 0.10 0.10
Total 0.10 0.10

b. Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up:

10,000 (31 March 2024:10,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 0.10 0.10
Total 0.10 0.10
c. Reconclllation of equity shares outstanding at the As at Asat

baginning and at the end of the year 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Particulars No of shares Amount No of shares Amount
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 10,000 0.10 10,000 010
Add: Issued during the year * = = =
Outstanding at the end of the year 10,000 0.10 10,000 0.10

d. Rights, preferences and restrictlons attached to shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of INR 10 per share. Each shareholder is entitled to one vote per share held. The company
declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing
Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company,
after distribution of all preferential amounts The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders

e, Detalls of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares In the C

As at As at
fume of tha sharhiojear 21 March 2025 31 March 2024
No of shares % No of shares b
Entero Healthcare Solutions Limited including shares held by nominee 10,000 100 10,000 100
f. Shareholding of Promotors at the end of the year
As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024

% change % change

Name of the shareholder No of shares ot Total during the No of shares Gl during the
Share Share
perlod perlod

Entero Healthcare Solutions Limited* 10000 100% 1] 10000 100% a

*Qut of total 10,000 equity shares, Mr. Prabhat Agrawal holds 1 equity share i.e. 0.01% of total shares, as nominee of Entero Healthcare Solutlons Limited.
As per records of the Company, including Its reglster of shareholders/members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding beneficlal interest,

the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficlal ownerships of shares.

f. No class of shares have been issued as bonus shares or for consideration other than cash by the Company during the period of one period immediately
preceding the current perlod end

8. No class of shares have been bought back by the Company during the period of one period Immediately preceding the current perlod end.

Other equity
Retalned Earnings
Asat Asat
Particulars 31 March 202531 March 2024
Opening balance {12.66) (7.79)
Add: Net profit for the current period (8.97) {(4.90)
Less: Re-measurement gain/{loss) on post employment benefit obligation (net of tax) - 0.03
Closing balance {21.63) (12.66)
ul d H SEVE

Retalned earnlngs:

This reserve represents undlstributed losses of the company as on the balance sheet date. Retained earnings includes re-measurement galn/(loss) on defined
benefit obligations, net of taxes that will not be reclassified to Profit and Loss.

A2




CPD Pharma Private Limited

Notas farming part of the Financtal Statements for the year ended on 31 March 2025
(Amount in Milliens, unless otherwise stated}

1

1

1

1

6

~

Particulars

Borrowlings
{l) Secured, from Bank:
Working capital demand loan

{i} Unsecured , from related parties :
Loans and advances from related partles* (Refer note 39)

-Holding Company

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Long term Short term Long term Short term
000 -
25.00 ENES - 28.23
25.00 323 - 28.23
=i

*The company has avalled unsecured short term/ long term loan from Holding Company to be repayable on demand and over a perlod of 5 years, respectively.
These loans carry a interest rate of 9.00% p.a.(31 March 2024:13.00% p.a.}

Lease Llabillty

Partlculars

At amortised cost
Lease Liability {Refer note 40)
Total

Provislons

Particulars

Provision for employee benefits {(Refer note 33)

Pravision for gratuity {unfunded)
Total

Trade payables

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises

As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

Long term Short term

Long term Short term

071 016

174 1.24

0.71 0.16

1.74 1.24

As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

Long term Short term

Long term Short term

0.17 0.11

0.17 0.11

0.17 0.11

0.17 0.11

Total outstanding dues of credItors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises®

Total

Trade Payable Agelng Schedule
Asat 31 March 2025

0.00 *
0.64 0.54

0.64 0.54

Particulars

fing for Following years fram the date of

Lass than 1

1-2 years 2-3 years

More than 3 years Total

MSME
Gther
Disputed Dues - MSME
Disputed Dues - Others

Total

As at 31 March 2024

Particulars

for Followlng years from the date of tr

Lessthan1
year

1-2 years 2-3 years

More than 3 years Total

MSME
Other
Disputed Dues - MSME
Olsputed Dues - Others

013

042

- 0.54

Total

0.13

0.42

0.54




CPD Pharma Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Financlal Statements for the year ended on 31 March 2025
{Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

Disclosure relating to suppliers registerad under MSMED Act based on the information avallable with the Company:

As at As at

Particulars
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

{a) Amount remaining unpald to any suppller at the end of each accounting perlod:
Princlpal 0.00
Interest

Total - -
{b) The amount of Interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act, along with the amount of the .
payment made to the supplier beyond the appolnted day during each accounting period.

{c) The amount of Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment {which have been paid but . -
beyond the appolnted day during the period) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act.

{d) The amount of Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting perlod
{e) The amount of further Interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding perlods, until such date when - -
the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductlble
expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act.

As at As at

Partlculars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

20 Other financlal llabllitles

Interest accrued and due on borrowlIngs (Refer Note 39) 973 7.32
Other Payables 0.43 -
Total other financlaf llabilities 10.16 7.32

21 Other current llabilities
Statutory due payable 0.05 0.3%
Other Payables . 1.04

Total other current liabilities 0.05 1.43




CPD Pharma Private Limlted

Notes forming part of the Financlat Statements for the year ended on 31 March 2025

{Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

22

23

24

25

26

27

Partlculars

Revenue from operatlons
Sale of goods

Other operating revenue
Total

Analysis of r by
Trading of pharmaceutical and surgical products.

Revenue based on timing of recognition
Revenue recognition at a point in time
Total

Revenue based on Geography
Domestic

Export

Total

Other income
Interest Income
Interest on g of security dep
Interest income on income tax refund
Galn on termination of Lease
Miscellaneous Income
Total

Purchase of Stock-in-trade
Purchases of Stock-In-trade
Total

Changes In inventorles of stock-In-trade
Inventories
“Stock In trade at the stant

Less: Inventories at the end of the perod
-5tock In trade at the end

Net {increase)/decrease

Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages, bonus and other allowances

Gratuity and p ed absences {Refer note 32}
Staff welfare expenses

Total employee benefits expense

Finance costs
{I} Interest on Borrowings
On loan from holding company (Refer note 39)

{il) Others

Bank charges

Interest on Lease Llabllitles
Total

Depreciation and amortization expense

Depreclation on Property, Plant and Equipment (Refer note 5 {A})

Depreclation on ROU {Refer note S (B))
Total

For the year ended

For the year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(0.45} 8242
0.00 -
(0.45) 82.42
{0.45) 82.42
(0.45) 82.42
[(X5) 82.42
{0.45) 82.42
(0.45) 82.42
0.02 0.04
0.02
0.50
. 0.02
0.54 0.06
10.60) 6469
(0.60) 64.69
0.09 14.50
0.09 14.50
(0.04) {0.09)
(0.04) (0.09)
0.05 14.42
0.01 223
- 0.10
0.00 0.06
0,01 2.39
268 368
0.00 0.00
0.09 0.27
2.77 3.95
0.42 0.51
0.46 1.31
0.88 1.81
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29

30

3

Partlculars

Other expenses

Legal and professional charges

Travelllng expenses

Power and fuel

Repalrs and malntenance

Distrlbutlon Cost

Printing and stationery

Net Impalrment losses on trade recelvables/Financlal assets
Communlcation expenses

Commlsslon Expenses

Buslness Support Charges

Office Expenses

Audltor's remuneration (Refer note below)
Insurance

Miscellaneous expenses

Total

Partlculars
As audltor:
Statutory audlt fees
Total

*Note : The followling Is the break-up of Auditars remuneration (excluslve of taxes}

Income Tax
Current tax
Current tax on profits for the year
Adjustments for current tax of prlor years
Total Current Tax
Defarred tax expense {Income)
Total tax expense

Earnings per share

Loss attributable to the equity holders of the Company (A}

Welghted Average number of shares Issued for Baslc and Diluted EPS {B)
AdJustment for calculation of Dlluted EPS (C }

Welghted Average number of shares Issued for Dlluted EPS (D= B+C}
Baslc EPS In Rs.

Dituted EPS In Rs.

§ = 3

~, ,.’-

for the year ended on 31 March 2025

For the perlod ended  For the perlod ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

0.15 0.19
0.06 015
0.01 0.26
0.36 0.04
0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00
1.48 131
0.00 003

- 0.06

B 035
0.01 0.09
0.03 017
0.01 0.02
0.02 0.07
213 274
0.03 0.17
0,03 0.17
3.81 (2.62)
3.81 (2.62)
(8.96) {4.90)
10,000 10,000
10,000 10,000
|896.27) {a90.0)
{B96.27) {490,04)
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32 Employee benefits

I Defined benefit plans

Gratuity
The Company has an unfunded Gratulty Scheme for Its employees and gratulty {labllity has been provided based on the actuarial valuation done at the year
end. The present value of the defined benefit obligations and the related current service cost and past service cost were measured using the Projected Unit
Credit Method.

The actuarial valuation of the defined benefit obligation was carried out at the balance sheet date.

Based on the actuarial valuation obtalned in this respect, the following table sets out the details of the employee benefit obligation as at balance sheet date:

Based on the actuarial valuation obtalned in thls respect, the following table sets out the details of the employee beneflt obligation as at balance sheet date:

Sr No. Defined benefit plans

Ex T Ised In

of profit and loss durlng the year:

For the perlod ended
31 March 2025

For the period ended
31 March 2024

Current service cost 0.08
Net interest cost / {income) on the net defined benefit liability / {asset) - 0.02
Total expenses * 0.09
Il Expenses recognised in other comprehensive income
Amount recognized in OCI, Beginning of year (0.04) 0.02
Actuarlal {galns) / losses due to financial assumptlon changes in defined benefit obllgations E 0.00
Actuarlal {galns})/ losses due to experlence on deflned benefit obligations - (0.04)
Total Remeasurements recognized in OCI
Total expenses - {0.04}
Il Net asset /(ltabllity) recognised as at balance sheet date:
Present value of defined benefit obligation 0.28 0.28
Funded status [surplus / (deflcit)] 0.28 0.28
iV Movements In present value of defined bhenefit obligation
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the beglnning of the year 0.28 0.22
Current service cost 0.08
Interest cost 0.02
Actuarial (gains) / loss - {0.04)
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 0.28 0.28
V  Maturity proflle of defined benefit obligation
a Funding arrangements and funding policy
The Company has purchased an insurance pollcy to provide for payment of gratuity to the employees. Every perlod, the insurance Company carries
out a funding valuation based on the latest employee data provided by the Company. Any deficit [n the assets arising as a result of such valuation is
funded by the Company.
b The average outstanding term of the obligatlons (perlods) as at valuation date is 4 periods
a Expected cash flows for the future periods
1st Following perlod 0.11
2nd Followlng perlod 0.04
3rd Followlng perlod 0.03
4th Foliowing perlod 0.03
5th Followling period 0.02
Sum of pertods 6 To 10 0.08
Sum of periods 11 and above - 0.06
VI Quantitatlve sensltivity analysis for significant assumptions Is as below:
(1) +1% Increase In discount rate (0.01)
{li) -1% decrease In discount rate 0.01
{li1) +1% Increase In rate of salary Increase - 0.01
(Iv) -1% decrease In rate of salary increase (0.01)
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Notes

2

b)

Sensitivity analysls method
The sensitivity analysis have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the
reporting perlod, while holding all other assumptions constant.

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the projected benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the
change in nssumpuohqdd occur In isalation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated,

Furthermare, in presenting. the above sensitivity analysls, the present value of the projected benefit obligation has been calculated using the
projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same method as applied in calculating the projected benefit obligation
as recognised in the balance sheet.

There was no change In the methods and assumptlons used In preparing the sensltivity analysis from prior periods.

Actuarial assumptlons: As at As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Discount rate = 7.13%
Expected rate of salary increase - 8.00%
Rate of Employee Turnover - 20.00%
Mortality Rate During Employment IALM {2012-14) Ultimate
Retirement age s 58 years

The rate used to discount post-employment beneflt obligations Is determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting perlod on
government bonds.

The estimates of future salary increases considered in the actuarial valuation take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant
factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.
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33

34

as

36

Contingent liabllitles & commitments
There is no contingent liabllty and commitments.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM")
of the Company. The wholetime director of the Company acts as the ({CODM}. The Company operates only In one business segment i.e. trading
of pharmaceutical and surgical products and hence, the Company has only one reportable segments as per Ind AS 108 “Operating Segments”.

Capltal Management

The primary objectlve of the c /'s capltal manag Is to ensure that it maintains an efficient capltal structure and maximizes
shareholder value. The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions, annual
operating plans and long term and other strategic investment plans. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the company may
adJust the amount of dividends pald to shareholders or Issue new shares. The company Is not subject to any externally Imposed capital
requirements. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital durlng the perlod ended 31 March 2025 &
31 March 2024. The company monltors capltal using a ratlo of 'adjusted net debt' to 'equity’. For this purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as
total liabilities, comprising interest-bearing loans and borrowings less cash and cash equivalents. Equity comprises all components of equity
including share premium and all other equity reserves attrlbutable to the equity share holders.

The company's adjusted net debt to equity ratio is as follows.

Particulars Asat Asat

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Borrowlings
Long term borrowings 25.00 .
Short term borrowings 323 2823
Less: cash and cash equlvalents [1.40) (1.37)
AdJusted net debt 26.82 26.85
Total Equity (21.53) (12.56)
Adjusted net debt to equity ratlo 1.25 (2.14)

Events after reporting date
There have been no events after the reporting date that require disclosure In these financlal statements
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37 Fair value measurements

A, Accounting classiflcation and fair values
The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of fi assets and fl ial liabilities, including their levels in the fair value
hierarchy. It does not include falr value information for financlal assets and financial labilities not measured at falr value if the carrylng

Carrylng Amount

Particul
cuars FTPL  FVTOCI A"‘c‘:::“d Total

Flnanclal assets and llabllitles as at 31 March 2025
Non Current financlal assets
Other Financial Assets - 011 011

Current financlal assets

Trade receivables - 6.38 6.38
Cash and cash equivalents . - 140 1.40
Borrowings - - 25.00 25.00
Total - - 32.90 32,89

Non Current financlal Liabllities
Lease Liabllitles . . 0.71 0.71

Current financlal liabllitles

Lease Liabllities . 016 0.16
Borrowlngs - - 323 3.23
Trade payables - - 064 0.64
Other financial liabllities . - 1016 10.16
Total - - 14.90 14.90

Carrying Amount

Partlculars
ATPL FVTOCH A'";';:“d Total

Financlal assets and labillties as at 31 March 2024
Non Current financlal assets
Other Financial Assets - 0.87 0.87

Current financlal assets

Investment . - .

Trade receivables . - 11.05 11.05
Cash and cash equlivalents . - 137 1.37
Total - - 13.29 13.29

Non Current financlal Liabllitles
Lease Liabilitles - 174 1.74

Non-current financlal Habllitles
Other financlal liabllities . *

Current financial llabllitles

Lease Liabllities - - 124 1.24
Borrowings - - 28.23 28.23
Trade payables . - 0.54 0.54
Other financlal llabllities - - 7.32 7.32
Total - - 39.07 39.07
B.The carrying of trade recelvables, trade bles, d Its, other recelvables, cash and cash equlvalent including other current

bank balances and other liabllitles Including deposits, creditors for capltal expenditure, etc. are consldered to be the same as thelr fair values,
due to current and short term nature of such balances.

€. Fair Value Hierarchy

The falr value of financlal Instruments as referred to above have been classlified into three categories depending on the Inputs used In the
valvatlon technique. The hlerarchy glves the highest priority to quoted prices In actlve markets for Identical assets or Nabliltles (Leve) 1
measurements) and lowest priority to unobservable Inputs {Level 3 measurements).

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy Includes financlal Instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes listed equity Instruments and mutual
funds that have quoted price. The falr value of all equity Instruments which are traded In the stock exchanges Is valued using the closing price
as at the reporting period.

Level 2: The fair value of financlal Instruments that are not traded In an active market Is determined using valuatlon techniques which
maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant Inputs required to fair
value an Instrument are observable, the Instrument Is Included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant Inputs s not based on observable market data, the Instrument Is included in level 3, This Is the case
for unlisted equlty securltles included in level 3.
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38 Flnanclal Risk Management
The company has in place comprehensive risk management policy in order to identify measure, monitor and mitigate various risks
pertaining to its business. Along with the risk management policy, an adequate internal control system, commensurate to the size
and complexity of its business, is maintained to align with the philosophy of the company. Together they help in achieving the
buslness goals and objectives consistent with the company's strategies to prevent inconsistencies and gaps between its policies
and practices. The Board of Directors/committtees reviews the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management policy and
internal control system. The company’s financial risk management is an integral part of how to plan and execute its business
strategies.
The company has exposure to the following risks arising from financia! instruments:
e Credit risk
¢ Liquidity risk and
¢ Market risk

{A) Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its
contractual obligations, and arises princlpally from the company’s trade and other receivables. The carrying amounts of financial
assets represent the maximum credit risk exposure.

i) Trade and Other Receivables

Trade receivables are typically unsecured and are derived from revenue earned from customers located in India. Credit risk has
always been managed by the company through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the
creditworthiness of customers to which the company grants credit terms in the normal course of busines.

Summary of the compay’s exposure to credit risk by age of the outstanding from various customers is as follows:

Particulars sl Asat
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Unsecured

-Considered good 6.38 11.05
-Considered doubtful 1.92 1.39
Gross Trade Recelvables 8.30 12.44
Less:- Expected loss allowances {192} (1.39)
Net Trade Receivables 6.38 11.05

On account of adoption of Ind AS 109, the company uses expected credit loss model to assess the impairment loss, The company
computes the expected credit loss allowance as per simplified approach for trade receivables based on available external and
internal credit risk factors such as the ageing of its dues, market information about the customer and the company’s historical
experience for customers. The company has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance for trade
receivables based on a provision matrix. The provision matrix takes into account historical credit loss experience and is based on
the ageing of the receivable days and the rates as given in the provision matrix.

li) Loans and financlal assets measured at amortlzed cost
Loans and advaces given comprises of inter company loans hence the risk of default from these companies are remote.The
Company monitors each loans and advances given and makes any speclfic provision wherever required.

lil. Cash and bank balances

The company held cash and cash equivalent and other bank balance of Rs. 1.40 million at 31 March 2025 {31 March 2024: Rs. 1.37
million). The same are held with bank and financial institution counterparties with good credit rating. Also, company invests Its
short term surplus funds in bank fixed deposlt which carry no market risks for short duration, therefore does not expose the
company to credit risk.

iv. Others
Apart from trade receivables ,loans and cash and bank balances , the company has no other financial assets which carries any
significant credit risk.

CHENNAI
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{B) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities
that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as
possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions,
without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the company's reputation. Management monitors rolling forecasts of
the company’s liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows.

{1) Maturiltles of financlai llabilitles
The following are the remalning contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date, The amounts are gross and

undiscounted, and include contractual interest payments.

Contractual maturities of financial liabilitles Less than one One to five years More than Total

31 March 2025 year flve years

Lease Liabilities 0.24 0.83 . 1.08
Borrowings 3.23 25.00 28.24
Trade Payables 0.64 0.65
Other financial liabllities 10.16 - - 10.17
Total 14.27 25.83 - 40.14
Contractual maturities of flnanclal llabilitles Less than one One to five years More than Total

31 March 2024 year flve years

Lease Liabilities 1.67 1.60 . 3.29
Short term borrowings 28.23 - 28.23
Trade Payables 0.54 0.54
Other financial liabilities 7.32 . - 7.32
Total 37.76 1.60 - 39.37
{C) Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices — such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices — will affect
the company'’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage
and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return. The company’s exposure to, and
management of, these risks is explained below.

(i) Forelgn currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates. The
company caters mainly to the Indian Market . Most of the transactlons are denominated in the company's functional currency l.e.
Rupees. Hence the company is not materially exposed to Foreign Currency Risk.

{l1) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the falr value or future cashflows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates.

The exposure of the Company’s borrowing to Interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Particulars Asat Asat

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Variable rate borrowings 0.00 0.00
Fixed rate borrowings 28.23 28.23
Sensitivity:
A change of 100 basis points in interest rates would have following impact on profit after tax and equity -
Particulars Asat Asat

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Interest rates — increase by 100 basls points * 0.00 0.00
Interest rates — decrease by 100 basls polnts * (0.00) (0.00)

* HoldIng all other varlables constant
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k1 Related Party Dlsclosures
A Humes gl pelated partles sod paturs of rdlationahip:

g reiatianthip P of 1he related pasty

Halding Coenuy Salitinns Limitia
Fellow 1ubsidiary companies | Atrisgs e aithease Sabutiain, Private Lsted
dwinile Litecare Pharma Private Limhed
| Averies Pharma Distributors Privete Limited
Iksimos Enterprises Private Limited

Caicutta Madisalutions Privite Limited
[Ehathana Healheam Safutan Frivese Lmined
Chething Phisma tatruton Privite Limimed
Chethana Pharme Private Limited
Chbatira Hagithoare Solutions Private Limited
Chirag Madicare Salutions Privee Limard
City Phasing Destilsutors friate Limited
Curever Phasma Private Umited
| et Phimtrg Weness frivate Limitud
et Saper Specabily yite Limied
Lritdru 65 Entarprises Private Uimited
G5 Pharmacmutienl Dutritsisors Praite Limited
| Cabaayrier Fianma Distributors Private Umited
Getwall Modicare Safution Private Umited
Gty M|l Agaacims Pivata Uit
|»g4l Enterprises Private Umited
Millwsniliim Madisolutions Private Umiled
| Hew RAPD Private Umited
Wi Srva Afencies Privata Limited
Hewaesna Mealihiears Solulions Private Limited
Paioes Biorecn Privale Limited
1S M Pharma Private Limited
Maala Madinalutom Private Limited
3.4, Pharma Traders Private Umited
Sa pharma disuibuton Prova Umiled
Sairaititrs Medisahitinis Private Limited
Se3n Dilzies Maisgliton Privats imago
Sred Venkatesthiwars Medisolutions Privale Limited
e Parchva Plarma Datnbasars frivate Lematod

il Private Lenited
Arinivaes Ufecars Private Limited
Seinlartal Dharme Gstribusor Urivais Linbed
Supestihat Pharmaceutica’s Private Limited
VLD Salutions Private Lamsted
1545 Lifesciancas Private Umitad
Swarnd Mediolutions Private LimHed
Vartitvl Whisificare Sobitings Privile Linitie)
Wektmrm Haaltheare Sstetians Private Lmited
Ll tabupshiwar Phasma Distritwten Frivate mited
Curamen Lidegeinnees Private Limitid
Riimiddin Pharma Private Umitad
Lano Softeacg Sedutlont Frate L ed

§. Karthlliayan
Sivmeiumar Neraimhan f\rigned wee f. 16 ianairy 2028}
Key Managamant Personnal and | Suthish Kiirar Appolnted w.e.f. 15t Janeury 2024}

their relativer Eartikayin
solel [Appeinted w.e.l. 16th Mey 2023)
M. Salal Glango
Dejrak Svaikusiniar
B, Details of related party bransactions o
For the year ended For tha year ended

N

Esties st Tisciscton TS AR Fistes 5 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
lacks Meddinolutiont Prnite Limjted [T 401
Entara Hesjthesrs Selutiam Umited 043 0.28

Purchase Havifcare Heatificare Salutions Frivate Linited 5

Naw Slva Agancies Privata Limited 047
e RANG Prbvats Limibeid g 040
Itaeta Medlialutiond Prcats Lirrites - Mk

Sale of stock In bude [ Mew IRAFD Private Limitad {0.35) 1027
SVMED Sahutlons Private Limiied - Dag




c

Interest Eugroive [Landra vresificare Sokitiots Uiniied I T |
Ramuresstion Fald [5 arihlhepsi [¥13 nia |
Datalls of for ralated party
. At A
Name of the relat
Naturs of Transection related party 31 March 2028 91 March 2024
Losan Taknn mtera Salutiong Linised an W |
intgrest Payabie [Fntera Fealihcare Salutions Umied 73 731
Trade and other Recetvables |17 M cAutlam rivite Limitet [fET] m
Mew ARED Paiviale Lisiited BB i
Entera Healtheste Salutions Lismioid 043 LER )
Heavican Healthcera Solutions Private Limited 101k
Itiaa Medisolutions Private LimMed 0.07 007
Trade and
redosndotharpayabies | s agancies finvate Limited - 054)
Hew ARID Drivate Limited 0.10 lo.cap
5 Karl hikipan - ahs
Key managemaent personnel compansation:
For the year ended For the year ended
Portleul
fon 31 Manch 2025 31 March 2024
Director Remunerstion:
Selaries and Aliowances () 060

Key managerial personnel who sre under the smployment of Lhe Company are entitled to past employment benefits recognised as per Ind AS 19 - 'Employea Benefits’ In the
financlal statements. & (e oo Sanidliny are et proyided o the b el st sellrban, e seee o pon (e libed above Gratuity s been consputes fip
1he Company a4 a whole end hemce exciuded.

The tramactons with rafated parties are made 00 e equivafent fo thats that oravell in orm's fength batances ut tha yest-end ife unsecured and
nEadh This M It | yas {rousgl exevdning the fveial poaitiin of the rebated pamy atid b mad s which the relpied

party oparstes.
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Disclosure related to Leases

Particulars

Carrying value of right of use assets at the end of the reporting year

Balance at the beginning of the year
Additlons

Deductlons

Depreciatlon charge for the year
Balance at the end of the year

Change In carrylng value of lease liabllitles at the end of the reporting year
Balance at the beginning of the year

Additions

Deletion

Payment of lease liabillties

FInance cost during the year

Balance at the end of the year

Maturity analysis of lease liabilitles
Less than one year

One to five years

More than flve years

Total undiscounted fease liabllitles at reporting year

Lease llabllitles Included in the of fl lal position at the year ended
A Ised In st of profit or loss

Interest on lease llabilltles
Depreclation of right of use assets

A recognised in the of cash flows
Total Cash outflow for leases

Statement of unhedged forelgn currency exposure:
The Company has no farelgn currency exposure.

A 2\
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-

—
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Asat As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

251 3.82
1.05

(2.22)

(0.46} (1.31)
0.87 2,51
298 4.22
1.06

{2.70) .

{0.56) {1.51)
0.09 0.27
0.87 2.98
024 1.67
083 1.60
1.07 3.28
0.87 2,98
0.09 0.27
046 131
0.56 1.51
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42 fotio Amalysls

% change from
Partlculars 31st March 2025 | 31st March 2024 | March 31, 2024 to March
31,2025
a} Current Ratlo Currenl Assels Current Liabilities
105 047 1244 %)
Short term and long term .
(b} Bebit-Luny Ratks horrowings Sharetolder’s Equlty. 3y 2128) 141721%
Earning bofare Interest,
(c) Debt Service Coverage Ratlo |Tax, Ditgsteeciation and Debt Service {0.07) {025)
Lunartisaiion (74.12)%
d) Return an Equity Ratls Net Profit After Tox | Auerage Linglile nel worih 0.53) 048} 9.5 M|
] invmmtory turieyer ratio Cost of poods soli Awerage nuantory (@a7) 1085 {181 71)%
(1) Trade Recelvables turnover
it Net credit sales Average Trade recelvables {0.05) 417 101 23)%
[8) Trade payables turnover ratio | Credit purchases Average Trade payable (1.01) 21.20 {104 7%
Working Capital (Current
h) Net 1af L 1t Sal 0,03, 456
{h) Net capital turnover ratlo es Assats.Curcent Liahilities (0.03) {100.65)%
(i) Met peolit ratia Mk Prafit Aftes Tax Net Siley 19,98 [l-?m (1235 081%
Earning before Interest N
{1} Return on Capltal employed and Tax |Av:rase Capital Employed (0.34) © ZDII 721%
Liph Far ritio variiniss
1. Ratio decreased due to lower Inventory level and sales
Z. Ratio decreased due to higher loss as compared to previous year
1_Ratio increased due Lo lower margin and higher finance cost
#, Ratlo decreased due to lower margin
5. Ratlo deceased due to lower trade receivables
. Ratlo Inrceased due to lower higher payable
7 EBIDTA increased as compared Lo previous year hence ratio increased
P, Due to reclasslfication of hurruwlng frim short term to long term

a4 Othar information:

{a). The Board of Directors of the Company, at its meeting held on November 25,2024 approved the proposed merger of CPD Pharma Private Limiled with
Rada Medisolutlons Private Limited, with effect from {April 01, 2025].

The Company is in the process of flling the Scheme of Merger with the National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) under the provislons of Sections 230 to 232 of
the Companies Act, 2013, read with the C ies {Compl , Ar and Rules, 2016, and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, for the sanctlon of the Schemne.

Other Statutory Information:

(i) Detalls of benam| property held

The Company do not have any Benam! properly, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending agalnst the Company for holding any Benaml property
(1} Relatlonships with struck off companles

The Company do not have any transactions with companles struck off
(N1} Registration of charges or satisfaction with Reglstrer of Companles

The Company do not have any charges or satlsfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory perlod.
(tv) Detalls of crypto currency or virtual currency

The Company have not Lraded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.
{v) Utlitsation of borrowings avalled from banks and financlal Institutions

The Company have not advanced or extended loan or Invested funds to any ather person(s] or entity(les), Including forelgn entlties {intermediarles} with
the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in ather persons or entitles Identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company {Ultimate
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiarles

The Company have not recelved any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including forelgn entitles {(Funding Party} with the understanding {whether
recorded in writing or otherwlse) that the Company shall:

{a) directly or indirectly lend or invest n other persons or entltles Identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party {Ultimate

{b) provide any guarantee, securlty or the llke to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficarles
{vi) Undisclosed Income

The Company does not have any undisclosed Income which Is not recorded In the books of account that has been surrendered or disclosed as income
during the year {previous year} In the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the
Income Tax Act, 1961

{vil) The Indian Parllament has approved the Cade on Soclal Security, 2020 which would Impact the contrlbutions by the company tawards Provident Fund
and Gratulty. The Ministry of Labour and Employment has released draft rules for theCode on Soclal Security, 2020 on November 13, 2020, and has Invited

from which are und by the Ministry, The Group will assess the Impact and Its evaluation once the subject rules
are notified and will glve approprlate Impact In its financlal statements in the year in which, the Code becomes effeclive and therelated rules to determine
the financlal impact are published.

(vill) Witull defautter

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financlal Insti or by any 3
{in) Comptlance with number of fayers of companies

The company has complied with the number of Iayers prescribed under clause {87) of section 2 of the Act read with the Companles {Restrlction on number
of Layers) Rules,
(%) € with d of

The company has not enlered Into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting Impact on current or prevlous financial year.
(xf) Title deeds of immovahle properties not held In name of the company

The title deeds of all the prop {other than prop where the company Is the lessee and the lease arrangements are duly executed In
favour of the lessee} are held In the name of the Company during the current and previous year.
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CPD Pharma Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Financlal Stataments for the year ended on 31 March 2025
[umsunt ln Millking, wiles atherwhbe stated)

q

£

[C] of PPE, assets and proparty
Tha company has not revalued Its property, plant and equioment {Including Right of use assets) or Intanglble sssets or both during the current or previous
(i) Audit Trall

The accounting software "Entero ERP” Is used by the Company for recording purchase & creditors, Inventory, sales & debtors, purchase as well as sales
returns, during the yaar ended March 31, 2025. The “Entero ERP~ softwara has feature of recording audit trall {edit log) facllity elther at application level or
at databese level.

{niv) Backup of books of accounts

The company uses software / IT applications to malntain Its books of accounts and other books and papersin electronic mode (“Elactoronlc racords®). During
the yeor, the Company has malntenad backups of these electronlc records on server physically located In Indla on dally basls, as required by Companles
(Accourta] Riles, 2004 Loy simendod)

The financlel stetements were authorised for Issue by the company's board of directors on May 24 ,2025.

Previous yeor figures have baen where ¥, to conform to this year's classification.

As per our report of even date
Far Srintvazan Sumadaram & Co,
Chartered Accountants

Firm Kugivtration Ne. 011359

Forand on behelf of the Bourd of Diiertors,
CPD Pharma

fre e
S.Srinlvasen KAVS Varaprasad
Proprietor Director
Membership No:217206 DIN:08403009
Place : Chennal Place : Chennal Placa : Chennal
Date: 26-05-2025 Date: 26-05-2025 Date: 26-05-2025



CPD Pharma Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

1. Company Information:
CPD Pharma Private Limited (the “Company”) is a private limited company incorporated in India on 21 June,
2019, having its registered office at 34, Ethiraj Samy Salai, Erukkencherry M R Nagar Chennai, Tamilnadu-
600118.

The Company is a subsidiary of Entero Healthcare Solution Limited. The Holding company (Entero
Healthcare Solutions Limited) is listed on National Stock Exchange (NSE) & Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE).
The Company is in the business of distributions and marketing of pharmaceutical products, Surgical
Products and other allied services.

2. Basis of Preparation, Measurement

Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act") read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules,
2016.
These financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and on a going concern
basis

Basis of Measurement

These financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention, except for the following
material items which are measured on an alternative basis, required by relevant Ind AS, on each
reporting date:-
e Certain Financial assets are measured at fair value (refer accounting policy on financial
instruments);
e Employee’s net Defined Benefit (assets/liability) as per actuarial valuation; and
e Liabilities for Share-based payments arrangements,

These financial statements comprise the Balance Sheet at 31** March 2025, the Statement of Profit and
Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash
Flows for the year ended 31% March 2025 and 31* March 2024;

Accounting policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented except where a newly
issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires
a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

The financial statements are approved by the Board of Directors on 26 May , 2025.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company'’s functional
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(Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

Functional and presentation Currency

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The financial statements are
presented in Indian Rupee (INR), which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.

Use of Judgements and Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the Management to make
estimates and judgements that affect the Company’s accounting policies and the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities at the Balance Sheet date, reported amounts of Revenue and Expenses for the year
and disclosure of Contingent liabilities at the Balance Sheet date. The estimates and Judgements used in
the accompanying financial statements are based upon the Management’s evaluation of the relevant
facts and circumstances at the date of the financial statements. Actual results could differ from these
estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a periodic basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates, if any, are recognized prospectively in the year in which the estimates are revised
and in any future years affected.

Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognized in the financial statements, is included in the following notes:

¢ Note (5A): Determination of estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets.

* Note (5B): Determination of discount rate and lease term for the purpose of discounting of lease
payments.

* Note (7): recognition of deferred tax assets: availability of future taxable profits against which
deductible temporary differences and carried forward tax losses can be utilized.

¢ Note (8): income taxes: Significant judgements are involved in estimating budgeted profits for the
purpose of paying advance tax, determining the provision for income taxes, including amount expected
to be paid/recovered for uncertain tax positions

* Note (34 (I) (VII)): Measurement of Defined benefit Obligations: assumptions include salary escalation
rate, discount rate, expected rate of return on plan assets and mortality rates.

 Note(33): Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies: Key assumptions about the
likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits.

» Note(37): Fair valuation of financial assets and liabilities. When the fair value of financial assets and
liabilities cannot be measured on quoted prices in active markets, the fair value is determined using
appropriate valuation techniques along with assistance from valuation experts.

* Note(38(A(i))): measurement of Expected Credit Loss (ECL) allowance for trade receivable and loans:
Key assumptions in determining the weighted average loss rate.
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Fair value Measurement

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair value is the
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:
¢ In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
e In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability
accessible to the Company.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimizing the use of unobservable inputs. The Company’s management determines the policies and
procedures for fair value measurement.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorized into different levels within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the level
of inputs used in the valuation techniques as set out below.
e Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
e Level 2 —inputs other than quoted prices included in level one and Valuation techniques for
which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or
indirectly observable.
e Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is based on unobservable market data.

Current and non-current classification
All assets and liabilities are classified into current and non-current.

Assets
An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
e itis expected to be realised in, or intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s normal
operating cycle, which is defined to be of twelve months.
e jtis held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
e itis expected to be realised within 12 months after the balance sheet date; or
e it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.

Current assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets. All other assets are classified
as non-current.

Liabilities
A liability is classified
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e jtis expected to be realised in, or intended for sale or consumption in, the Company's’
normal operating cycle;
e itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded,;
e itis due to be settled within 12 months after the balance sheet date; or
o the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least
12 months after the reporting date.
Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of
equity instruments do not affect its classification.

Current liabilities include current portion of non-current financial liabilities. All other liabilities are
classified as non-current.

NOTE 3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1 Business Combination
Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method under the provisions of Ind AS
103, Business Combinations. At the acquisition date, identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed are measured at fair value. For this purpose, the liabilities assumed include contingent
liabilities representing present obligation and they are measured at their acquisition date fair values
irrespective of the fact that outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is not probable. The
consideration transferred is measured at fair value at the acquisition date.

Where the consideration transferred exceeds the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed, the excess is recorded as goodwill. Alternatively, in case of a bargain purchase
wherein the consideration transferred is lower than the fair value of the net identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed, the Group after assessing fair value of all identified assets and
liabilities, record the difference as a gain in other comprehensive income and accumulate the gain in
equity as capital reserve.

In case of business combinations involving entities under common control, the above policy does not
apply. Business combinations involving entities under common control are accounted for using the
pooling of interests method. The net assets of the transferor entity or business are accounted at their
carrying amounts on the date of the acquisition subject to necessary adjustments required to
harmonise accounting policies. Any excess or shortfall of the consideration paid over the share capital
of transferor entity or business is recognized as capital reserve under equity.

3.2 Property, Plant and Equipment
The cost of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is recognized as an asset if and only if, it is probable

that future economic benefits associated with the item, will flow to the Company and the cost item can
be measured reliably.

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated
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(Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)
and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located. Any trade discounts, rebates, input
tax credit (IGST/ CGST and SGST) or any other tax credit available to the company are deducted in arriving
at the purchase price. If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have significant
costs and different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items (major components} of
property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent expenditure relating to Property, Plant and Equipment is capitalized only when it is probable
that the future economic benefits associated with that expenditure will flow to the Company and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Borrowing costs to the extent related/attributable to the acquisition/construction of the Property , Plant
and Equipment that takes substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalized
up to the date such asset is ready for use.

An item of Property, Plant and Equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is
derecognized.

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment
Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment is calculated on the cost of items less there estimated

residual values, on straight-line method over their respective estimated useful lives, which is in line with
the estimated useful lives as specified in Schedule 1l of the Companies Act, 2013.

Particulars Useful Life as per prescribed in
Schedule Il of the Act (year)

Leasehold Improvement* Lease Period

Computer and peripherals 3-6

Furniture and fixtures 10

Office equipment 5

Vehicle 8

Plant and Machineries 15

Electrical Installations and Equipment 10

*Leasehold improvements are amortized over the period of the lease or useful life whichever is lower.

Depreciation on addition to property plant and equipment is provided on pro-rata basis from the date of
acquisition. Depreciation on sale/deduction from property plant and equipment is provided up to the date
preceding the date of sale, deduction as the case may be. Gains and losses on disposals are determined
by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in Statement of Profit and Loss.
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3.3 Goodwill:

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
consideration transferred over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed, in accordance
with Ind AS 103.

Goodwill is not amortized but it is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that it might be impaired, and is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units (CGUs) for the purpose of impairment testing. The
allocation is made to those CGUs or group of CGUs that are expected to benefit from the business
combination in which the goodwill arose. The units or groups of units are identified at the lowest level
at which goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes.

3.4 Other Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization.

The cost comprises purchase price, directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition
for the intended use. Any trade discounts, rebates, input tax credit (IGST/ CGST and SGST) or any other tax
credit available to the company are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Borrowing costs to the extent related/attributable to the acquisition/construction of intangible asset that
takes substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalized from the date it meets
capitalization criteria till such asset is ready for use.

Intangible assets are amortized on a straight line basis over their estimated useful economic lives,

The amortization period and the amortization method are reviewed at least at each financial year end. If
the expected useful life of the asset is significantly different from previous estimates, the amortization
period is changed prospectively.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of

profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

A summary of amortization period applied to the Company’s intangible assets is as below:

Particulars Useful life (years)
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(Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)
3.5 Revenue Recognition

Revenue from Sale of Goods

Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of promised goods to customers, generally on delivery of
goods at the agreed point of delivery. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable, excluding discounts, incentives, price concessions, amounts collected on behalf of third
parties, or other similar items, if any, as specified in the contract with the customer. Revenue is recorded
provided the recovery of consideration is probable and determinable. Revenue also excludes taxes
collected from customers.

Invoices are usually payable based on the credit terms agreed with customers which vary up to 90 days.

Other Income

Interest income is recognized on time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and
the applicable interest rate. Interest Income is recognized on a basis of effective interest method as set
out in Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments, and where no significant uncertainty as to measurability or
collectability exists.

Marketing Support

Marketing support income is recognized upon completion of promised services to customers. Revenue
is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, excluding discounts, incentives,
performance bonuses, price concessions, amounts collected on behalf of third parties, or other similar
items, if any, as specified in the contract with the customer. Revenue is recorded provided the recovery
of consideration is probable and determinable.

3.6 Taxes

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current and deferred tax is recognized in
Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

a) Current Income Tax:

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on taxable income or loss for the year and
any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of the previous years. Current tax Assets and
liabilities represents the best estimates of the amounts expected to be recovered or paid to the taxation
authorities. The Tax Laws and Tax rates used to compute the amounts are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted, at the reporting date. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the
entity has a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized balances and intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

b) Deferred Tax:
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Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the balance sheet approach, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in financial statements.
Deferred income tax is also not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in
a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss). Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates {and
laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the year and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset is realized or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
they can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that the related tax benefit will be realized; such reductions are reversed when probability of
future taxable profit improve.

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.

3.7 Intangible Asset Under Development

The Company capitalizes intangible asset under development for a project in accordance with the
accounting policy. Initial capitalization of costs is based on management’s judgement that technological
and economic feasibility is confirmed, usually when a product development project has reached a
defined milestone according to an established project management model. In determining the amounts
to be capitalized, management makes assumptions regarding the expected future cash generation of
the project, discount rates to be applied and the expected period of benefits.

3.8 Leases

The Company as a lessee

The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of
an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset
(i) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period
of the lease and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.
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At commencement or on modification of the contract that contains a lease component, the Company
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of its relative
standalone prices. However, for the leases of property the company has elected not to separate non
lease component and account for the lease and non lease components as a single lease component.

The Company recognizes right-of-use asset and lease liability representing its right to use the underlying
asset for the lease term at the lease commencement date. The cost of the right-of-use asset measured
at inception shall comprise the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability adjusted for any
lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received, plus any
initial direct costs incurred and estimate an present value of costs to be incurred by the lessee in
dismantling and removing the underlying asset and restoring the site on which it is located.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation, accumulated
impairment losses, if any and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability.

The right-of-use asset is depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date over
the lease term or useful life of right-of-use asset whichever is earlier. The estimated useful lives of right-
of use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property, plant and equipment. Right-of-use
assets are tested for impairment whenever there is any indication that their carrying amounts may not
be recoverable. Impairment loss, if any, is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

The Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid
at the commencement date of the lease. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined,
the Company uses incremental borrowing rate, on a lease by lease basis, may adopt either the
incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease or the incremental borrowing rate for the portfolio as
a whole.

The lease payments shall include fixed payments, variable lease payments, residual value guarantees,
exercise price of a purchase option where the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option and
payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising an option
to terminate the lease. The lease liability is subsequently remeasured by increasing the carrying amount
to reflect interest on the lease liability, reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made
and remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease modifications or to reflect
revised in-substance fixed lease payments.

The company recognizes the amount of the re-measurement of lease liability due to modification as an
adjustment to the right-of-use asset and in the statement of profit and loss depending upon the nature
of modification. Where the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced to zero and there is a
further reduction in the measurement of the lease liability, the Company recognizes any remaining
amount of the re-measurement in the statement of profit and loss.

For leases with reasonably similar characteristics, the Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately
presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Company has elected not to recognize right-of-use asset and lease liability for leases of properties
that are having non-cancellable lease term of less than 12 months. The Company recognizes the lease
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3.9 Inventories

The inventory comprises traded goods which are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost of inventory of traded goods is arrived at based on actual cost of the “batch” which comprises cost
of purchase and all other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

Provision is made for the cost of obsolescence and other anticipated losses, whenever considered
necessary.

3.10 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a non
financial asset or a Company of non financial assets is impaired. If any such indication exists, the
Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount and the amount of impairment loss.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use, are tested for
impairment annually at each balance sheet date, or earlier, if there is an indication that the asset may
be impaired.

An impairment loss is calculated as the difference between an asset’s carrying amount and recoverable
amount. Losses are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss and presented in an allowance account.
When the Company considers that there are no realistic prospects of recovery of the asset, the relevant
amounts are written off. If the amount of impairment loss subsequently decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, then the previously
recognized impairment loss is reversed through Statement of Profit and Loss.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit (as defined below) is the greater of its value
in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of impairment testing,
assets are accompanied together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from
continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or group of of assets (the
“Cash-Generating Unit” - CGU).

3.11 Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event; it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. Provisions are not discounted to its present value and are determined based gnhgst estimate
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The Company creates a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event that
probably requires an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation
that probably will not require an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or where a reliable
estimate of the obligation cannot be made. When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation
in respect of which likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

Contingent assets are neither recorded nor disclosed in the financial statements.
3.12 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash on hand , cash at banks and short-term
investments with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value and bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the balance
sheet.

Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of cash flow statement comprise cash on hand and cash at
banks and short-term investments with an original maturity of three months.

3.13 Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

(A) Financial assets

(i) Recognition and Initial measurement

At initial recognition, financial asset is measured at its fair value plus or minus, in the case of a financial
asset not “at fair value through profit or loss” are measured at transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair
value through profit or loss are expensed in statement of profit and loss.

(ii) Classification and subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following categories:

a) at amortized cost; or
b) at fair value through other comprehensive income; or
c) at fair value through profit or loss.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the
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(Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)
Amortized cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortized cost. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate method (EIR).

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVOCI). Movements in the carrying amounts are taken through Other Comprehensive Income (‘OCl’),
except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest income and foreign exchange gains
and losses which are recognized in statement of profit and loss. When the financial asset is derecognized,
the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCl is reclassified from equity to statement of profit
and loss and recognized in other gains/ (losses). Interest income from these financial assets is included
in “Other income” using the effective interest rate method.

Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or FVOCI
are measured at fair value through statement of profit and loss. Interest and dividend income from these
financial assets is included in “Other income”. Net gains and losses, including any interest or dividend
income are recognized in statement of profit and loss.

Equity instruments: All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity
instruments which are held for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a
business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies are classified as FVTPL. For all other equity
instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to present in OCl subsequent changes in
the fair value in other comprehensive income. The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-
instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as FVOCI, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no reclassification of the amounts
from OCI to statement of profit and loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may
transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

(iii) Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL)
model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on financial assets that are measured at
amortized cost and FVOCI.
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(Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)
For recognition of impairment loss on financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that
whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has
not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk
has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If in subsequent years, credit quality of the instrument
improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then
the entity reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12 months ECL.

Life time ECLs are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected
life of a financial instrument. The 12 months ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from
default events that are possible within 12 months after the year end.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e. all shortfalls), discounted at the
original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider all contractual terms of
the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension etc.) over the expected life of the financial
instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial instrument cannot be
estimated reliably, then the entity is required to use the remaining contractual term of the financial
instrument.

In general, it is presumed that credit risk has significantly increased since initial recognition if the
payment is more than 90 days past due.

ECLimpairment loss allowance {or reversal) recognized during the year is recognized as income/expense
in the statement of profit and loss. In balance sheet ECL for financial assets measured at amortized cost
is presented as an allowance, i.e. as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance
sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write off criteria, the
Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

(iv) Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognized only when

a) the right to receive cash flows from the financial asset is transferred or

b} retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset but assumes a contractual
obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the financial asset is transferred then in that case financial asset is derecognized only if
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset is transferred. Where the entity
has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial
asset is not derecognized.

(B) Financial liabilities
(i) Recognition and Initial measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at
or loss or at amortized cost phfapriate.
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(Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)
All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of borrowings and payables,
net of directly attributable transaction costs.

(ii) Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition
as at fair value through profit or loss. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held
for trading are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

(iii) Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized
cost using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognized in Statement of
Profit and Loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process. EIR
is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

(iv) Derecognition of Financial liability

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit and loss as
finance costs.

(C) Embedded Derivatives

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid (combined) instrument that also includes a non-
derivative host contract — with the effect that some of the cash flows of the combined instrument vary
in a way similar to a standalone derivative. Derivatives embedded in all other host contracts are
separated if the economic characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative are not closely related
to the economic characteristics and risks of the host and are measured at fair value through profit or
loss. Embedded derivatives closely related to the host contracts are not separated.

Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the terms of the contract that significantly

modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of
the fair value through profit or loss.

(D) Offsetting financial instruments
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Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there
is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must
not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the
event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

3.14 Employee Benefits

{(a) Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly
within 12 months after the end of the year in which the employees render the related service are
recognized in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the year and are measured at the amounts
expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee
benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

(b) Post employment benefit plans
(i) Defined contribution plan

Provident Fund: Contribution towards provident fund is made to the regulatory authorities, where the
Company has no further obligations. Such benefits are classified as Defined Contribution Schemes as the
Company does not carry any further obligations, apart from the contributions made on a monthly basis
which are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Employee's State insurance Scheme: Contribution towards employees’ state insurance scheme is made
to the regulatory authorities, where the Company has no further obligations. Such benefits are classified
as Defined Contribution Schemes as the Company does not carry any further obligations, apart from the
contributions made on a monthly basis which are charged to the statement of profit and loss.

The Company has no further obligations under these plans beyond its monthly contributions.
(ii) Defined Benefit Plans

Gratuity: The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan {covering eligible employees in
accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum payment to
vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount
based on the respective employee's salary. The Company's liability is actuarially determined (using the
Projected Unit Credit method) at the end of each year. Actuarial losses/gains are recognized in the other
comprehensive income in the year in which they arise.

Costs comprising service cost (including current and past service cost and gains and losses on
curtailments and settlements) and net interest expense or income is recognized in profit or loss.

The obligation recognized in the balance sheet represents the actual deficit or surplus in the Company’s
defined benefit plans. Any surplus resulting from this calculation is limited to the present value of any

ta the plans.
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Compensated Absences: Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed or
encashed within 12 months from the end of the year are treated as short term employee benefits. The
obligation towards the same is measured at the expected cost of accumulating compensated absences
as the additional amount expected to be paid as a result of the unused entitlement as at the year end.

Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed or encashed beyond 12 months
from the end of the year end are treated as other long term employee benefits. The Company's liability
is actuarially determined (using the Projected Unit Credit method) at the end of each year. Actuarial
losses/gains are recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the year in which they arise.

Leaves under defined benefit plans can be encashed only on discontinuation of service by employee.

3.15 Foreign Currency Transactions

On initial recognition, all foreign currency transactions are recorded by applying to the foreign currency
amount the exchange rate between the functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of the
transaction. Gains/Losses arising out of fluctuation in foreign exchange rate between the transaction
date and settlement date are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

All monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are restated at the year end at the exchange rate
prevailing at the year end and the exchange differences are recognized in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.

3.16 Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

The weighted average numbers of equity shares are adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus
element in the rights issue, share split and reverse share split (consolidation of shares) that have changed
the number of equity shares outstanding, without corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable
to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are
adjusted for the effects of all potential dilutive equity shares.

3.17 Share Based Payments

Share-based compensation benefits are provided to the employees via the Share based long term
incentive scheme.
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using an appropriate valuation model. That cost is recognised, together with a corresponding increase
in share options outstanding account in equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service
conditions are fulfilled in employee benefits expense. The cumulative expense recognized for equity-
settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date represents the extent to which the
vesting period has expired and the Company’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. Expense or credit recorded In the statement of profit and loss for a period represents
the movement in cumulative expense recognized as at the beginning and end of that period and is
recognized in employee benefits expense.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of
diluted earnings per share.

3.18 Share capital

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary equity shares are recognized as deduction
from equity.

3.19 Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of Company that engages in business activities from which it earns
revenues and incurs expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of
the Company's other components and for which discrete financial information is available.

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM”) of the Company. The Key Managerial Person of the Company
acts as the (CODM). The Company operates only in one business segment i.e. trading of pharmaceutical
and surgical products and hence, the Company has only one reportable segments as per Ind AS 108
“Operating Segments”.

4. RECENT INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (IND AS) AND PRONOUNCEMENTS

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards
under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. Ministry of Corporate
Affairs (“MCA”) vide notification no. G.S.R. 291 (E) dated 7" May, 2025 made amendments in the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.

The notification explains the following:

o Exchangeable definition

e Estimating the spot exchange rate when a currency is not exchangeable into another currency.

¢ Disclosures requirements when an entity estimates a spot exchange rate because a currency is not
exchangeable into another currency

¢ Recognition of effect of initially applying the amendments

These amendments are applicable for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1° April 2025, with
specific transitional provisions outlined.




